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STATE REOUIRED SCHEDULE

Auditor's Electronic Financial Data Integrity Check Figures (Revenues, Expenditures, and Fund Balance
by Fund)
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164 E. MAIN
TRINIDAD, COLORADO 81 082
(719)846-9241 FAX (71e) 846-3352

DIXON, WALLER & GO., ING. CERTI FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

130 N. SECOND STREET
RATON, NEW MEXICO 87740

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Education
Falcon School District Number 49
Falcon, Colorado 80f50-1198

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Falcon School District
Number 49, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise Falcorr School
District Number 49's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November
19r 2004, 'We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Aaditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Falcon School District Number 49's
basic financial statements are free of material misstatement, we per{ormed test of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance rvith which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of basic fïnancial statement amounts. Howeyer,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Audíting Standards,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and per{orming our audit, we considered the Falcon School District Number 49's internal
control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the basic financial statements and not to provide assurance on the intemal
control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one more
of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements

-s6-



in amounts that woirld :be 
material in relation to the basic financlal statements being audited may

be detectô ployees in ,the norqral .còurse:of per{orming
functions. the intçrnal co:rtrol over flnancial reporting
on that we ses.

't'

This report is intended solely,for the information and use of the Board of Education, rnanagement and'
federal awarding agencies and pasp-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone gther thart these specified parties. ¡ i



oPa DlxoN, WALLER & GO., lNG.

164 E, MAIN
TRINIDAD, COLORADO 81 082
(719)846-9241 FAX (719) 846-3352

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

130 N, SECOND STREET
RATON, NEW MEXICO 87740

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE \ryITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE \ryITH OMB

CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Education
Falcon School District Number 49

Falcon, Colorado 80150-1 198

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the Falcon School District Number 49, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U..S. Offíce of Management and Budget (OMB) Círcular A-133 ComplÍance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30; 2004.
Falcon School District Number 49's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requiremedts of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is

the responsibilify of Falcon School District Number 49's management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on Falcon School District Number 49's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Aaditíng
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audíts of
States, Locøl Governments, and Non-Profìt Organízations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on

a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Falcon
School District Number 49's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as

we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Falcon School District Number 49's

compliance with those requirements.

As described in item 2004-l in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Falcon School

District Number 49 did not comply with requirements regarding the accuracy of "final" reports submitted
to the State Education Agency applicable to its major federal programs. Compliance with such

requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for Falcon School District Number 49 to comply with
requirements applicable to those programs.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceeding paragraph, Falcon School District
Number 49 complied, in all material respects, with the requirements refcrred to above that are applicable to
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2004.
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Internal Control Over ComPliance

The management of Falcon School District Number 49 is responsible for establishing and maintaining

effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants

applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Falcon School

Oìstrict Number 49's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and

material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose

of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in

accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the

internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design

or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the

risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would

be material in relation to a -u¡o. federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a

timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no

mattõrs involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material

weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education' management and

federal awarding agencies and pass through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties-

,/'-ørrfurlUr=-Z 4,"--
i(ovembe. tg,,ZOOl
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 3012004

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Report

An unqualified report has been issued on the basic financial statements of Falcon School District Number

49.

Reportable Conditions

No conditions were disclosed by the audit which were considered to be material weaknesses.

Noncompliance

No instances of noncompliance in amounts material to the basic financial statements of Falcon School

District Number 49 were disclosed by the audit.

Report on Compliance - Maior Programs

The Auditor's report on compliance for the major federal awards programs for Falcon School District

Number 49 expresses a qualified opinion on its major federal programs.

Audit Findines

An audit fïnding relative to the major federal award programs for Falcon School District Number 49 is

reported in this schedule.

Maior Programs

Education of the Handicapped - IDEA Part B
IDEA Preschool
National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs

Dollar Threshold to Distinsuish Tvpe A and Tvpe B Prosrams

$300,000.

Oualification as -Risk Auditee

The District qualifies as a low-risk auditee for Fiscal Year 200312004.

FINDINGS - GAGAS

None
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QTJESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 3012004

FINDINGS _ FEDERAL AWARDS

2004-l
(cFpA NO. 84.173)

Condition: Expenditures per the District General Ledger do not agree with
"final" amounts reported to the State Educational Agency (SEA) for
the fîscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2004. The following is a
schedule of these differences:

CFDA
No.

Amounts Per
SEA Reports

Amounts Per
District's General Ledger Difference

Fiscal Year 200312004
IDEA Part B

Fiscal Year200212003
IDEA Preschool

Criteria:

Effect:

Questioned Costs: $63,612.

Recommendation:

84.027 821,215 774,961 46,254

84.173 37,935 20,577 173s8

_6L612Total Ouestioned Costs

The District is required to report to the SEA in accordance with
agencies established procedures. These procedures require that the
"final" reports for the above programs reflect the actual
expenditure per the District General Ledger.

The program expenditures for the above fiscal years were
incorrectly reported to the SEA and approved carryover amounts
were less than the actual amounts per the District financial records.

The District should require that program directors preparing final
reports reconcile their financial data with that of the District's
General Ledger. Monthly meeting between the District Finance
Manager and the various program directors could be used to
accomplish this reconciliation.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2004

Federal Grantor/Pass through
Title

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through Colorado Department of Education:

School to Work (S.W.A.P.)
Title I (ESEA)
Title II Part A
Title II Part D
Drug Free Schools
Title V - Innovative
Education of the Handicapped

IDEA Part - B
IDEA Preschool
School to Career
Goals 2000

Sub-Total Passed Through Colorado Department of Education
Passed through the Colorado State Board for Community
Colleges and Occupational Education:

Carl Perkins Vocational Education
Passed through Pikes Peak BOCES:

Title III ESL
Direct Program:

Impact Aid
Total US Department of Education

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through the Colorado Department of Human Services:

Food Distribution

Pass through Colorado Department of Education:
National School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program
Sub-total Passed throush Colorado Department of Education

Total US Department of Aericulture

U.S. Department Veteran Affairs
Passed through Colorado Department of Health Care Polices
And Finance:

Medicaid
U.S. Department - Interior
Direct Program:

Reserve Officer Training Corps.

84.126^
84.010
84.367
84.318
84.r86
84.298

84.027
84.173
84.249
84.276

84.048

84.36s

84.041

10.ssO

10.553
10.555

94.000

Expenditures

81,361
2l7,lg6
126,437

8,904
2l,ll7
34,340

774,961
49,922
4,099

4t
1.318.368

21,947

3,028

213.858
1.557.201

59,731

26,983

18.106

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

-62-
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A\ryARDS
For the Year Ended June 30,2004

NOTE 1 Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity

of the Falcon School District Number 49 and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The information is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore,

some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the

preparation of the general purpose financial statements.

NOTE 2 Food Distribution

Non-monetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market value of the commodities

received.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SEC BOND ISSUE REQUIREMENT

UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE ONGOING DISCLOSURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section (b) (5) (i) of the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12
(17CFR part 240, Section 240.15c2-72)(the "Rule"), the District has agreed to provide certain fÏnancial
information and other operation data (the "Undertaking") to nationally recognized municipal securities
information repositories ("NRMSIRs").

The following 10 tables are the information specified in the covenants to bond holders. The information is
as of June 30, 2004. This information rvas prepared by the District and has not been subjected to the audit
process.



TABLE I
District General Obligation Debt Service Requirements 1r¡

The Series 2002 A Bonds

Principal Interest 1z¡ Total

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
20tt
2012
2013
2014
20ts
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Total

10,000
10,000
10,000

1,040,000
1,420,000
1,480,000
1,555,000
1,630,000
1,710,000
1,795,000

655,125
655,125
640,125
644,995
644,610
844,300
457,900
401,100
334,500
256,750
175,250
89,750

655,125
655,125
650,125
654,995
654,610

1,894,300
1,8771900
1,881,100
1,889,500
1,886,750
1,885,250
1,884,750

10.660.000 5.799.420 16.459.420

(0) Assumes no redemptions, other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions, prior to
maturity. Figures have been rounded.

(l) Includes the "8" interest payable on the Registered Coupons on the (,8" interest
payment date, which includes an original issue price of $1,402,335.



TABLE I
District General Obligation Debt Service Requirements (l)

The Series 2002 Bonds

Calendar
Year Principal Interest (2) Totat

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
20tt
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Total

5,000
100,000
300,000
500,000
675,000
855,000

1,030,000
1,325,000
1,795,000
1,995,000
2,000,000
2,115,000
2,235,000
2,365,000
2,495,000
2,625,000
2,770,000
2.920.000

27.995.000

11725,293
11725,094

2,006,594
l,9gg,5g4
2,399,344
2,219,656
2,$461192
l,749,g3l
l,2gg,5g2
1,195,369
10076,406

971,406
g4g,7g4

724,076
594,000
457,326
312,950
160.600

23.491.096

1,730,293
1,925,094
2,306,594
2r4gg,5g4
3,073,344
3,074,656
3,076,192
3,074,931
3,093,592
3,090,369
3,076,406
3,096,406
3,094,794
3,089,076
3,079,000
3,092,326
3,092,950
3.090.600

51.486.096

(l) Assumes no redemptions, other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions, prior to maturity. Figures
have been rounded.

Ql Includes '68" interest payable on the Registered Coupons on the ,ó8" interest payment date, which
includes an original issue price of $3,190,366.

Source: TheUnderrvriter



TABLE I
District General Obligation Debt Service Requirements

Calendar
Year Principal Interest Total

The Series 1 A Bonds 11) The Series I Bonds fl)

Principal Interest Total

365,000 13,698 378,699

Other
General

Obligation
Bonds

830,315
1,229,103
1,229,965
1,226,965
1,230,255

Total
Debt

Service

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
20tt
2012
2013
2014
20r5
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

165,000
315,000
420,000
535,000
665,000
800,000
935,000

1,065,000
1,180,000
1320,000
1,440,000
1,525,000
1,635,000
1,735,000
1,840,000

892,328
886,140
874,170
858,000
825,900
786,000
738,000
686,576
628,000
563,100
490,500
404,100
312,600
214,500
110,400

1,057,329
1,201,140
1,294,170
1,393,000
1,490,900
1,586,000
1,673,000
1,751,576
1,808,000
1,883,100
1,930,500
l,g2g,l00
1,947,600
1,949,500
1,950,400

41651,749
4,,910,462
5,490,754
5,774,344
6,449,109
6,544,956
6,627,082
6,707,507
6,,781,082
6,850,218
6,992,156
6,900,256
5,032,394
5,038,576
5,029,400
3,092,326
3,082,950
3.080.600

Total 15.574000 I,U!êU 24'8Æß!4 3é5,000 13.6SS 378ó8S 5J46,403 g&glsJzl

Source: The District



TABLE II
History of District Mill Levies

Sources: State of Colorado, Colorado Department of Local Affairs, Division of property
Taxation, 1995-2003 state of colorado Property Tsx Annual Reports,,the El paso
County Assessor's Office and the District.

Levy/Collection
Year

t99sn996
1996/1997
1997n998
1998n999
1999t2000
2000/2001
2001t2002
2002/2003
2003t2004

General Fund
38.212
38.212
35.608
35.608
31.667
31.667
29.750
29.370
28.847

Bond
Redemption

21.371
20.871
16.437
16.680
16.967
16.0r4
16.000
16.930
15.500

Abatements
0.082
0.114
0.072
1.311
0.208
0.089
0.060
0.124
0.228

Total
Mill Lew

s9.665
s9.197
52.117
53.s99
48.842
47.770
45.810
46.424
44.57s

8.4yo
27.8o/"
8.7"/"

23.60/0

12.lo/o
27.4"/"
13.7o/o

14.8o/o

Percent
of f fActualrf

Valuation
86.2Vo
6.t
6.0
0.8
0.8
0.1
0.0

100.0o/"

TABLE III
History of District's Assessed Valuation

Levyl
Collection Year

199sn996
1996/1997
1997/1998
1998/1999
1999t2000
2000/2001
200u2002
2002t2003
2003/2004

Assessed Valuation
90,962,140
99,519,090

125,939,090
136,934,510
169,235,000
199,733,200
241,704,590
274,991,510
315,635,430

Increase lDecrease) percent Change

7,656,950
27,419,990
10,995,430
32,300,490
20,499,200
51,971,390
33,176,930
40,753,920

Sources: State of colorado, Colorado Department of Local Affairs, Division of properfy
Taxation, 1995-2003 state of cororado propirty Tax Annuar Reports, and the Er paso cáuntyAssessor's Offïce.

TABLE IV
2003 Assessed and "Actual" Valuation of Classes of Property in the District

Class
Residential
Commercial
Vacant
Industrial
State Assessed
Agricultural
Natural Resources

Assessed
Valuation

198,991,920
51,329310
50,435,970

61977,,230

61672,540
1,065,090

Percent
of Assessed
Va

ttActualtt

Valuation
2,499,560,147

176,ggg,l40
173,907,059
24,059,442
23,009,759
3,673,414

63.0o/o

16.3
16.0
))
2.1
0.3

I 73.580 0.1Total 3ISú35.4:!0
Source: El Paso County Assessors Offïce

100J% 2J01S05óIZ



TABLE V
Historical Property Tax Collections

Levyl
Collection Total

Year Taxes Levied
Current Taxes

Coll

5,348,654
5,657,953
6,519,176
7,287,202
8,207,559
9,010,194

11,451,269
12,552,939
13,992,951

Delinquent Tax
lections

Collections as

7o ofTaxes
I

1995/1996
1996n997
t997n998
1998n999
1999t2000
200012001
2001t2002
2002t2003
2003t2004

5,421,309
5,832,059
6,563,606
7,339,553
9,265,776
9,063,555

11,486,341
12,761,099
14,069,449

12,gg2
11,029
12,385
18,797
22,516
16,lgl
20,099
22,069
78,235

5,361,636
5,668,881
6,530,561
7,305,999
81230,074
9,026,375

11,471,369
12,575,007
14,071,196

98.9
97.2
99.5
99.s
99.6
99.6
99.9
98.5

100.0

Percent
of Levy

Collectedrrl

98.7
97.0
99.3
99.3
99.3
99.s
99.7
98.4
99.5

4,581
5,089
5,457
6,021
6,915
7,854
8,660

Total Tax
Collections

(l) Figures reflect current tax collections. Treasurer's fees have not been deducted from these amounts.
Sources: The District

TABLE VI
District Enrollment

Total
Sch Year Enro ent Percent Chanee
1997n998
1998n999
1999t2000
2000t2001
2001t2002
2002t2003
2003/2004

Source: The District 200312004

o/-/o
ll.lo/o

4 ao/t..L /o

10.3o/o

14.go/o

13.60/0

10.30/"



TABLE VII
summary of General Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Fund Balances

1999-2000 2000-2001 2001-2002 2002-2003 2003-2004
REVENUES
Local

Properfy Taxes
Specifïc Ownership Taxes
Tuition
Interest on Taxes
Transportation Fees
Earnings on Investments
Other

Total Local Revenues
County

Other
State
Federal
Excess Collections TABOR
Allocated Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Supporting Services
Other Uses of Funds

Total Expenditures

Operatin g Transfers Out
Total

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER ruSES)

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year
Prior Year Correction
End of Year

5,4921525
1,230,169

32,916
6,437

20,019
359,649
2lg,34l

7 1907,449
1,770,435

397,,933
16,511
25,971

183,673
196.096

7,134,065
1,617,711

346,477
l0,7gg
39,354

160,294
145.090

6,008,281
l,40g1966

363,369
10,004
56,573

352,350
152,009

8.351.550

9,191,413
1,960,991

479,928
19,259
36,511

146,729
94

7.350.054 9,453,770 10.498.067 12.060.114

6,098 9.434
19,297,975

50,079
198,209

(2.339.133)

24.557,092

22,039,171
134,935

(1.427,083)

29.098.573

26,960,995
t0l,469

(1.763,904)
34,758,319

32,864,394
145,399

(2.730,7801

40,777,069

37,807,994
259,947

(3.093.800)

47.042.689

27,776,962
19,167,773

10.965

14,794,758
10,228,724

33,741

16,144,272
11,861,941

20,005,933
13,729,922

44,401

24,488,415
16,593,904

.951 27.906
25.057.223 29.059.164 33.790.156 41,110,225 46.955.600

OTHER F'INANCING ruSES)
Proceeds from Capital Lease

164.658)
28,024

(189.418) (261.700\ n 152)
164.658) t161.394) (261.700) (13.152)

(564,799) 879,015 716,462 (346,308) 87,089

3,641,045 3,214,920
138,674

4,093,935 4,910,397 4,464,099

32UgU _4J93J35 _4,810J92 _4Æ4,ß9 _4é5l,1l8

Sources: District audited financial statements for fiscal years ended June 30, 2000-2004.



TABLE VIII
General Fund Budget Summary and Comparison

Beqinnins Fund Balance

Non-Appropriated Reserve

Adiusted Fund Balance

Revenue
Local Sources
County Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources

Allocation to Carrital Resen'e
or Insurance Reserve

Lease Purchase Proceeds

Net Revenue

Total Available

Expenditures
Instruction
Support Services
Other Uses of Funds
Transfers Out
Other

Total Expenditures

124 40,777.069 46,687,149

4AEé-001 45.s87Á66 ßü4e6

4,810,397 4,705,996 4,464,0g9

(3.318.618)

4,810.397 1,387.378 89

10,359,700 10,499,067 10,143,669

2002-2003
Budeet

33,160,569
126,000

2002-2003
Actual

32,964,394
l45,3gg

24,499,415
16,593,904

27,906
13,152

2003-2004
Budeet

38,555,024
140,000

27,826,209
18,589,477

2003-2004

12,060,114
9,434

37,807,994
258,947

47,042.699

51.506.778

27,776,862
19,I78,739

46.95s.600

(1,968,144) (2,730,780) (2,151,544) (3,093,800)

4t -6

25,124,025
16,610,900

7,600

1,293,476
43J3éO01 4L,W311_

Sources: District 200212003 and2003/2004 Budgets and the District audited actual.



Issue

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1991
General Obligation Bonds, Series 1996
General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series lggg{
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 19998
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2002^
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002A

Total

TABLE IX
Outstanding General Obligation Debt

TABLE X
Estimated Overlapping General Obtigation Debt

Outstanding
General

Obligation

63.s38.s14

Net Outstanding General
Obligation Debt Chargeable to
Properties within the District
Percent Amount

2.27o/o $ 388,511

Outstanding
Principal Amount

445,000
4,490,000

15,575,000
365,000

31,067,291
11,406,233

200.000

Entitv

City of Colorado Springs
Southeastern Colorado Water

Conservancy District
Metex Metropolitan District
Pikes Peak Library District

I)ebr

$ 17,115,000

96,361,750
8,970,000

4.35
77.39

5.23

4,191,736
6,941,883



TABLE XV
Outstanding Capital Leases

Principal Amount
OutstandinsCapital Lease

Three School Buses & Three Modulars
Two Buses & One Modular
Canon Copier (SMS)
Canon Copier (11)
Canon Copier
FSMaintÆrans Facilities
Twelve Buses
SCHS/SES/WHES Buildings
2 Special Needs Bues/7 Regular Buses/2 Replacement Vans
Mohawk Property/Falcon Sewer & Water
Buses

Total

71,087
43,,945

6,928
219,740
21,072

1,995,049
583,769

2,228,817
614,782

1,629,897
719.010

8.134.096

Source: The District

Certì!ícates of Particípøtíon. In 1995, the District issued its Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series

1995 in the aggregate principal amount of $1,875,000. As of June 30, 2004, the amount of the 1995

Certificates outstanding was $250,000.
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oPa DrxoN, wALLER & co., rNc.
164 E. MAIN
TRINIDAD, COLORADO B1 082
(719') 846-924't FAX (719) 846-3352

CERTI FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

130 N, SECOND STREET
RATON, NEW MEXICO 87740

Board of Education
Falcon School

District Number 49
Falcon, Colorado 80831

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-fype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Falcon School District Number 49, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004 which
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These fTnancial statements are the responsibilit¡' of the Falcon School District Number 49's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fTnancial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Audíting Standørds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the basic fÏnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the
basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates mâde by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respectsl the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Falcon
School District Number 49 as of June 30r 2004, and the respective chahges in fïnancial position
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

I



In accordance with Government Auditing Standørtls, we have also issued a report dated
November 19' 2004 on our consideration of Falcon School District Number 49's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
larvs, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auclifing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this
report in considering the results of our audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages i
through viii and 38 through 42, are not a required part of the basic financial statements fut
are supplementary information rcquired by accounting principles generally accepted in thc
United States of America. We have applied certain limited proceclures, whicù consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the supplementary information. However, we dicl not audit the information
and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Falcon School District Number 49 basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund fÏnancial statements and schedules are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic fïnancial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
n'hole. Additionally, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includcd in the Single
Audit scction is presented for additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local Governmenfs, anrl Non-proJit
Orgønizations and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such informatiôn
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fTnancial
statcments and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

The ongoing disclosure for bond issue requirements bound in this document under separate
co\¡er is not a required part of the basic financial statements, and we dicl not audit and do not
express an opinion on such information.

Z/zhfuZr&,.-
ber 19,2004
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of Falcon School District 49, we offer readers of the Falcon School
District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

Financial Highlights

The primary government has government-wide net assets totaling $15,291 ,244 at
the end of the current fiscal year.

Net assets increased by $3,767,296 from the prior fiscal year.

a

a

a The general fund ending fund balance reached $4,551 ,178 compared to

$4,464,089 at June 30, 2003. This calculates a fund balance to revenue ratio of
9.7o/o. Board of Education policy requires this ratio be maintained at no lower than
10%. The district's administration has implemented reactive measures to ensure
this ratio is met at June 30, 2005. At month end November 30, 2004, the
estimated ratio was 10.30%.

The District received the remainder of the $3.5 million donated by developers to
construct part of Meridian Ranch Elementary School, which was opened for
instruction in August 2004.

Business-type activities reported unrestricted net assets of $444,066 compared to

$371,525 at June 30,2004 in the Nutritional Service Fund.

a The District maintained its lowest tax rate in over 14 years

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
District's basic financial statements. The Falcon School District's basic financial
statements are comprised of three components: 1) government - wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The
government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities.

The statement of net assets presents information about all the District's assets and
liabilities. The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as net assets. Over
time changes in net assets may serve as a useful indicator as to whether the financial
position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net assets of the District
changed during the current fiscal year. Changes in net assets are recorded in the
statement of activities when the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of

a

a



related cash flows, as required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Thus,

revenues and expenses are reported in this statement even though the resulting cash flow
may be recorded in a future period.

The government-wide financial statements consolidate governmental activities that are

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues and business{ype activities that are
intended to recover all or most of their costs from user fees and charges. Governmental
activities consolidate governmental funds including the general fund, debt service fund,
capital projects funds, and special revenue funds. Business-type activities are made up of
the food service fund.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 3-5

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of self balancing, related accounts that are used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific purposes. The Falcon School
District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial and

legal requirements. All of the District's funds can be divided into two categories:
government funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as

governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide fund financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus

on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in

evaluating the District's short-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide

financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for government

funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-

wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the District's short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures, and

changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activittes.

The Falcon School District maintains eight individual governmentalfunds. lnformation is
presented separately in the governmentalfund balance sheet and in the governmental

fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general

fund, the bond redemption debt service fund, the grant fund, the capital reserve fund, and

the building funds because all are considered to be major funds. Data from the other three
governmentalfunds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. lndividualfund
ðata for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Falcon School District adopts an annual budget for each of the governmental funds. A
budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund is included in the fund financial
statements to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budget.



The basic fund financial statements can be found on pages 6-16

Proprietary Funds

The Falcon School District maintains one proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to

report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide

financial statements. The District uses an enterprise fund to account for its nutritional

services. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide

financial statements, only in more detail.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of

the District. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements

because the resources of those funds are not available to support Falcon School District's

own programs. The two fiduciary funds utilized by the District are the Falcon scholarship

fund'and the pupil activity fund. The accounting for fiduciary funds is much like that used

for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other lnformation

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental

funds are presented after the notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Assets

As noted earlier, an annual review of net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a

government's financial position. ln the case of Falcon School District, at June 30, 2004

ánd 2003, assets exceeded liabilities by $14,312,204 and $10,570,248 respectively, in

GovernmentalActivities and $979,040 and $953,700 respectively in Business Activities.

The assets of the District are classified as current assets, noncurrent assets and capital

assets. Current assets are available to provide resources for the near-term operations of

the District. The majority of the current assets are the result of the property tax process,

with the majority of these taxes received in May and June.

Noncurrent assets are mainly comprised of bond issue costs which will be expensed over

the life of the various bond issues.

Capital assets are made up of land, buildings, equipment/vehicles, and the Building

Authority's schoolfinanced through Certificates of Participation (C.O.P.). Current and

long-term liabilities are classified based upon anticipated liquidation, either in the near-

term or in the future. The liquidation of current liabilities is anticipated to be either from

lll



long-term liabilities are classified based upon anticipated liquidation, either in the near-
term or in the future. The liquidation of current liabilities is anticipated to be either from
current available resources, current assets or new resources that become available during
the current fiscal year. Long term liabilities such as long-term debt obligations will be
liquidated from resources that will become available after the current fiscal year.

A net investment in Governmental Activities of $77,933,708 in land, buildings and
equipment/vehicles provide services to the District's 8,660 students and represents 75% of
the District's net assets. Over $4 million in capital improvements was completed as the
result of the 2001 Bond Referendum with over $425,000 remaining to be completed in
fiscal year 2OO4-20O5. Net assets of $4.8 million have accumulated and have been
restricted to provide resources to liquidate the current general obligation bond principal
and interest payments. The legally required TABOR reserve and amounts to settle
outstanding encumbrances have also been restricted.

Falcon School District 49
Condensed Statement of Net Assets

As of June 30,

Government Activities
2004 2003

Business Type Activities
2004 2003

Total
2004 2003

ASSETS
Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Capital Assets (net of depreciatjon)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
lnvested in Capital Assets

Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Capital Outlay
Câpital Piojects
Debt Service
TABOR
Multi Year Obligations
Risk Management
lnventory
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

$r7,685,009
627,540

77,933,708

$23,716,785
684,040

72,670,775

$583,405 $494,650 $18,268,414 $24,211,435
627,540 684,040

78,468,682 73,252,950534,974 582,175
96,246.257 97,071,600 1,118,379 1,076,825 97,364,636 98,148,42s

9,658,622
72,275,431

1 1 ,713,833
74,787,519

81,053
58,287

80,293
42,832

9,739,675 11,794j26
72,333,718 74,830,351
82,073,393 86,624,47781,934,053 86,501,352

6,435,862 2,883,315

139,340 123,125

534,974 582,175 6,970,836 3,465,490

(261,8s0)
425,764

4,804,800
1,626,000

662,100
' 2,439

4,'189,967
4,309,940
'l,400,600

872,152
1,000

274,213

(2ô1,850)

425,764
4,804,800
1,626,000

662,100
446,505

4,189,967
4,309,940
1,400,600

872,152
1,000

274,213
(2,989,4r4)

¡144,066

- 371,525
$979,040 $9s3,700

617,089617

l\/

$15,291,244 $11,523,948



Statement of Activities

Governmental activities increased the net assets of the District by $3,741,956. Program
revenues included $556,251 in charges for services, $3,101 ,635 in operating grants and
contributions and $2,487,849 in capitalgrants and contributions. Over $52.9 million was
received in general revenues consisting of local property taxes, specific ownership taxes,
and school finance act revenue, an increase of over $6 million from the prior year. The
majority of expenses were for instructional purposes which totaled $34,550,052 out of a
total of $55,334,687

Business type activities (Nutritional Services) increased net assets by $25,340. Program
revenues included $1,455,515 in charges for services and $475,623 in operating grants
and contributions. All expenditures of $1,905,798 were for food services.

Falcon School District 49

Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For lhe Year Ended June 30'

Government Actlvitles
2004 2003

Business TYPe Activities Total

20M 2003 2004 2003

Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants & Contributions

Capital Grants & Contributions

General Revenues
Local ProPertY Taxes

Specific OwnershiP Taxes

School Finance Act

State - Homestead Act
Earning on lnvestments
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

Expend¡tures
lnstruction
Student SuPPort

lnstructional Staff
General Administration
School Adminlstration
Business SuPPort

Operation & Maintenance
Student TransPortation
Central SuPPort

Other SuPPort

Communi$ servlces
Food Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

lncrease in Net Assets
Prior Year Adjustment
Beginning Net Assets

TOTAL NET ASSETS

322.U1

-59,076,643 
51,725,453 1,93'l,138 1,856,463

322,841
61,007,781 53,581,916

$556,251
3,101 ,635
2,487.u9

13,968,304
1,960,981

36,483,989

194,793

$620,000
2,897,817
1,446,335

12,690,205
1,770,435

31 ,679,618
76,765

544,278

30,588,720
3,127,010
2,1U,734

435,823
2,740,929

54'1,890

4,693,070
2,357,351
2,477,067

807
'12,071

$1 ,455,515
475,623

$1,244,076
467,733
144,6il

$2,011,766
3,577,258
2,487,849

13,968,304
1,960,981

36,483,989

194,793

$1,864,076
3,365,550
1,590,989

12,690,205
1,770,435

31,679,618
76,765

s544,278

34,550,052
3,597,016
2,405,194

940,212
2,91.9,711

552,251
5,'106,657
2,763,789
2,457.730

42,075

34,550,052 30,588,720

3,597,0'16 3,127,010

2,405J94 2j84,734
940,212 435'823

2,919J11 2,740,929

552,251 541'890

5,106,657 4,693'070

2,763,789 2,357,351

2,457,730 2,477 
'06742,075 807

- 12'071

1 .905.798 1,783,122

-sl,zlo,aas 

50,942,594
55.334,687

3,741,956

49,159,472

2,565,981
2,206,654

797,613

25,340 73,U1

700

3,767,296 2,639,322
- 2,206,6il

11,523,948 6,677 ,972
- Tls.zgt,zqq $11,523,948

10,570 880,359



Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds

As stated earlier, the Falcon School District uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus on the District's governmental funds is to provide information on short-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. ln particular, fund balance serves
as a useful measure of the District's net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

The general fund is the major operating fund of the District. At the end of the current fiscal
year fund balance increased by $87,089 to $4,551 ,178 from $4,464,089 in the prior year.

This leaves the general fund with a fund balance to revenue ratio o19.7o/o which is just
below the Board Policy which mandates a 1Oo/o ratio. District administration has
implemented a plan in2004-2Q05 to insure the 10% ratio is met. As of November 30,
2004, administration is projecting this ration of be 10.3o/o.

The Bond Redemption Debt Service Fund remains in strong financial condition. The fund
has an ample fund balance to make the December 1't principal and interest payments on

the District's voter approved debt.

The Captial Reserve Fund had a planned spend down of fund balance due to a number of
District-wide projects including HVAC upgrades, phone upgrades, and new computer
systems. Due to delays on the part of some of the district's vendors, the funds for these
projects were not received by June 30, 2004. Accounting principles dictate that this
source of funds, although anticipated, could not be recorded in the district's records until it
is received, which was in early August. Thus, the Capital Reserve Fund is showing a
deficit fund balance of ($261 ,850). This deficit will be eliminated in 20Q4-2Q05, once the
revenue stream is recorded.

The Capital Projects - Building Fund exists to account for the proceeds and expenditures
related to the District's successful 2001 Bond Referendum totaling $28 million. Over $4
million was spent in 2003-04, reducing the remaining fund balance to just over $400,000,
all of which will be spent in 2004-05.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Falcon School District's budget is prepared according to Colorado law. The original
budget must be approved by the Board of Education prior to July 1't. The original budget
is prepared based on a conservative estimate of student enrollment growth. This
guarantees that the District does not overstaff or overextend its financial capabilities. The
2003-04 General Fund Budget was based on 8,182 full-time equivalents. The actualfull-
time equivalents on October 1, 2003 were 8,329. These additional students generated
approximately $900,000 in additional revenue. As the school year progressed, additional
positions and additional expenditures were added to the budget. The final amended
budget for fiscal year 2003-04 was approved by the Board of Education on June 26,2003.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

VI



The Falcon School District's investment in capital assets for governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2004 and 2003 amounts to $78,468,682 and $73,252,950
respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, equipment, vehicles and construction in progress.

Governmental Activities
lnvestments in Capital Assets

2003 2004

Land
Buildings
Machinery & Equipment
Construction ln Progress
Building Authority Building

Land
Buildings
Machinery & Equipment
Construction ln Progress
Building Authority Building

$ 3,335,336
59,281,616
4,464,121

16,219,296
1,810,220

$ 3,335,336
81,892,657

5,385,831

1,810,220

Depreciation ($12,439,814) ($14,490,336)

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets s72,670,775 $77.933,708

Business Activities

2003 2004

$ $-0

822,958 83'1,876

Depreciation ($240,783) ($296,902)

Total Business Funds Capital Assets $582,1 75 $534,974

Long-Term Debt

As of June 30,2004, the District had outstanding debt of $73,016,308. Of this
amount, 964,632,212 is general obligation bonded debt and accrued interest on

this debt, which is backed by the full faith and credit of the District. Certificates of
Participation in the amount of $250,000 are collateralized by specific buildings
owned by the District. The Falcon School District maintains credit ratings with two
agencies: Moody's lnvestors Services, lnc. Aaa, and Standard and Poor's Rating
Services AAA.

VI'I



Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

A sluggish local, state, and federal economy may begin to slow home sales
in the District.

The state economy, while improving, is still reeling from the effects of having
to deal with a multi-million dollar deficit in its last budget.

State aid for K-12 education will likely not provide any more than enrollment
growth plus inflation funding for next year.

State legislators continue to discuss a possible state wide referendum to
overturn Amendment23. This would cost the District over $500,000
annually in state aid.

As a result of the November 2004 Mill Levy Override defeat, District
administrators are preparing for higher class size in 2005-06.

Administration may not be able to rely only on larger class sizes to balance
the 2005-06 budget. Depending on the level of state aid, some programs
may need to be reduced in scope and alternative school scheduling will be
reviewed.

o The District must continue to work proactively with developers, the City of
Colorado Springs, and El Paso County to confront the enrollment growth
issue. Falcon School District has been the fastest growing school district in
the state, on a percentage basis, for the last several years.

Requests for I nformation

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Falcon School
District's finances for those with an interest in the District. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information
should be addressed to:

Lisa Schneider
Finance Manager
10850 E. Woodmen Road
Falcon, CO 80831

o

a

a

o

o

vlll



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS





FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30' 2004

Primarv Government
Governmental

Activities
Business Type

Total

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:

Capital Outlay
Capital Projects
Debt Service
TABOR
Multi Year Obligations
Risk Management

Unrestricted

6,,435,862

(261,850)
425,764

4,804,800
1,626,000

662,100
2,439

617.089

(261,850)
425,764

4,804,800
1,626,000

662,loo
2,439

1.061.155

534,974 6,970,836

444,066

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14.312.204 979.040 ts.291.244

-4-



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 3012004

Prosram Revenues
Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primerv Government

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities

Instruction
Student Support
Instructional Staff
Ceneral Administration
School Administration
Business Support
Operation & Maintenance
Student Transportation
Central SuppoÉ
Other Support
Capital Outlay

Total Govern mental Activities
Business Type Activities:

Food Services
Total Business Type Activities
Tota I Primarv Government

Charges for
Services

s27,606

3,ó45
25,000

Operating
Grants &

Contributions

Capital Grants
and

Contributions
Governmental

Activities
Business Type

Acf ivifies

2s.340
25.340
25340

25,340
9s3.700

v9{44

Total

2s.340
2s340

(49.163,.612)

t3,968,304
1,960,981

36,483,989
194,793
322.841

52.930.908
3,767,296

r 1.s23.948

15J91244

ExDenses

34,550,052
3,597,016
2,405,194

940,212
2,919,711

552,251
5,106,657
2,763,789
2,457,730

42,075
-

55334.687

r.90s.798
1.905.798

s7.¿40A85

1,925,536
31,924

386,204

536,423
221,548

475.623
475.623

3,571258

(32,096,910)
(3,565,092)
(2,015,345)

(915,212)
(2,919,711)

(552,251)
(5,106,657)
(2,227,366)

Q,236,182)
(42,075)

2.487.849
(49.r 88.952)

(32,096,910)
(3,565,092)
(2,015J45)

(915,212)
(2,919,711)

(552,251)
(5,106,657)

Q,227,366)
(2,236,1E2)

(42,075)
2.487.849

øg,.U!gE)
2.487.849
2.487.849

z¿ffiÅ49

5s6.251 3.101ó35

t.455.515
1.455.515

2,011,1_66

General Revenues
Taxes:

Local Property Taxes
Specifi c Ownership Taxes

School Finance Act
Earnings on lnvestments
Other Revenue

Total General Revenues & Transfers
Chanse in Net Assets
Net Assets. July I
Net Assets. June 30

@9,rgu2)

13,968,304
1,960,981

36,483,989
194,793
322.841

52.930.908
3,741,956

10.570.248

14412¿04

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financiâl statements.
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Grant
Fund
Special
Revenue

41,304

135,319
64,653

47,204
142,155

Capital
Reserve Fund

Special
Revenue

256,800

256.879

759

Building
Fund (45)
Capital

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

FundsPro ects

3,,43979 632,767

250

633.017

27,979

4,670,021
12,011,176

487,433
451,726
64,653

963,716

1.350
3.439 18.6s0.075

791,419
5,878,505

49,I02
963,716
227,790

1,062,858
154.354

9,127,744

1,626,000
662,100

4,804,800
425,764

(261,8s0)
2,439

2.263.078
9,522.331

517,970 180,274

52,267
241.626 518.729 208.253

424,764 1,000

(261,850)
2,,439

@ú1.8s0)

256.879

424,764 3.439

241.626 633.017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3.439

-7-
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30,2004

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TOTAL FUND BALANCE

Add:
Deferred Property Tax Revenue - Revenues that do not provide current
financial resources are deferred on the governmental fund financial
statements but recognized on the government-wide fÎnancial statements.

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not considered current
financial resources and, therefore, not reported in the governmental funds

Bond Issue Costs are considered a current period expenditure in governmental
funds, but are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds on the
Governmental - Wide financial statements.

Less:
Accumulated Depreciation is not recognized in the governmental funds
because capital assets are expensed at the time of acquisition

Accrued interest payable is not considered current financial resources

and, therefore, not reported in the governmental funds.

Long-Term Liabilities for general obligation debt ($63'538,514),

Bond premium (52,741,543),loss on Bond Refunding 5l'647,,845,
Compensated Absences ($713,313), Capital leases Payable ($8,134'096)

and Certificates of Participation ($250,000) are not due and payable

in the current period and, therefore, not reported in the governmental funds.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-8-

9,,522331

227,790

92,424,p44

626,190

14,490,336

268,194

73,729.621

14.312.204





Capital
Reserve
Fund

Special Revenue

Building
Fund (45)

Capital Proiects

44,779
105,215

3.912.500

(3,762,,506)

Other
Governmental

Funds

453,201

86,122

5s9323

1,342

Total
Governmental

Funds

16,062,858
39,585,624

194,793
3,3661941

59,210,216

28,896,710
3,509,,877

2,,405,194
927,,434

2,919,711
552,,251

4,938,936
2,324,726
2,399,605

42,,075

7,992,005

149.994

3,912,5003,993,383

4,187,270 2,097

424.764 3.439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30' 2004

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (3,442,665)

Add:
Deferred Property Tax Revenue - Revenues that do not provide current fÎnancial
resources are deferred on the governmental fund financial statements but
recognized on the government-wide financial statements. 227,790

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital
outlay reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds functions. 7,313,455

The governmental funds report debt proceeds as an other financing source,
while repayment of debt principal is reported as an expenditure. The effect of
issuance cost and premium are recognized when the debt is issued in governmental
funds, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. Interest expense is recognized as it accrues in the statement of activities
regardless of when it is due. The net effect of these differences follows:

Repayment of Debt Principal
Interest Expense
Amortization Expense

2,052,I20
64,602

(56.500) 2,060,222

2,050,522

361,363

4.961

3.741.956

Less:
Governmental Funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Deferred Property taxes ofthe prior year- Property taxes earned but deferred
in the prior year and received in the current year are recognized in the prior
year net assets on the statement of activities

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities do not require the use

ofcurrent financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-1 l-



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30' 2004

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash
Accounts Receivable
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Vehicles and Equipment
Less Accumulated DePreciation

Total Capital Assets. Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries PaYable
Due to Other Funds

Total Current Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities

Compensated Absences
Total hilities

Net
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Business - Type Activities
Enterprise Fund
Food Services

Fund

1.1L8,380

20,190
60,863

81.053

58.287
139.340

979-040

-12-



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 3012004

Business - Type Activities
Enterprise Fund
Food Services

Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:
Food Sales
Other Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies - Food
Depreciation
Supplies - Other
Indirect Costs

Total Operating Expenses

INCOME ILOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING REVENUES @XPENSES):
USDA Commodities
Reimbursement from Government Sponsored Programs

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Capital Contribution - Equipment Purchase

CHANGE IN NBT ASSETS

TOTAL NET SSETS-.Iulv I

TOTAL NET ASSETS. June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-13-

647,309
128,434
82,635

878,532
56,119
87,769
25.000

1.905.798

(450.283)

25,340

25,340

953.700

979.040



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIBTARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Business - Type Activities
Fund

Food Services

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from Customers
Payments to EmploYees
Payments to Vendors

Net Cash Provided bv (Used for) Orleratine Activities

CASH FLO\üS M NON CAPITAL FINAN G ACTIVITIES:
Federal Reimbursements
State Reimbursements

Net Cash Provided bv Non-capital Financine Activities

CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
Purchase of Fixed Assets (8.918)

(8.918)

CASH FLO F'ROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

NET INCR.EASE ECREASE) IN CASH AND C EOT]IVALENTS 98,326

CASH AND CASH IIIVALBNTS. Julv L

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. June 30

350.557

448.883

RECON ATION OF CASH FLO FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss)

bv (Used forl Operatine Activities
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivables
USDA Commodities Used
(Increase) Decrease in Purchased Food and Supplies Inventories
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries/Compensated Absences

Increase (Decrease) in Due to other Funds
Net Cash Provided bv (Used for) Operatine Activities

NONCASH INVESTING. CAPITAL. AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Donated Commodities Acquired from USDA
Donated Commodities Used

Contributed Capital - Equipment Purchase
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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56,119

59,731
(58,302)



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND

June 30' 2004

ASSETS
Cash

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Due to Student GrouPs

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Scholarships

Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-15-

Private
Purpose
Trust

Scholarship

1.005
1.005

1.005
1.005

Agencv

443.749
443.749

443.749
443.749



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 3012004

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Donations
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Grants and Scholarships

Total Deductions

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. Julv 1

NET ASSETS. June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-16-

Private
Purpose

Trust
Scholarship

543

1.005

543

543

462
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30' 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Falcon School District No. 49 of El Paso County was organized by a vote of qualified electorate

during 1889, under the provisions of Colorado Law.

The District operates under an elected Board of Education with five members and provides

educational services to approximately 8'300 students.

The District is the lowest level of government, which is considered to be financially

accountable over all activities related to public school education in Falcon School District
Number 49. The District receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources

and must comply with the requirements of these funding source entities. The Board of

Education members are elected by the public and have decision-making authority, the power

to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and primary

accountability for fÏscal mafters.

A. Reportine Entitv

Governmental Accounting Standards board (GASB) Statement No. 14, "The Financíal

Reporting Entity' (GASB No. t4) describes the financial reporting entity as it relates to

gon..n-"rtal accounting. According to this Statement, the financial reporting entity consists

óf u¡ the primary government, b) organizations for which the primary government is

f1nancially accountable, and c) other organizations whose exclusion from the reporting entify's

financial statements would cause those statements to be misleading or incomplete. Any

organizations that can be described by these last two items are included with the primary

government in the financial statements as component units.

Blended Component Unit. The El Paso School District Number 49 Building Authority
(EPSDBA) is governed by a fïve-member board. Although EPSDBA is legally separate from

the District, it is reported as if it were part of the District primary government because its sole

purpose is to fînance and construct buildings and improvements for Falcon School District

Number 49.

This District is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined in GASB

No. 14. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the USA, these basic

financial statements present the District (the primary government) and its component units.

B. GASB Statement No.20

Under GASB Statement No. 20 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds

and Other Governmentat Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting", all proprietary

funds continue to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards issued on

or before November 30, 1989. However, from that date forward, proprietary funds have the

-17-



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2004

NOTE 1 YOF LI

B. GASB Statement No.20 (Continued)

option of either 1) choosing not to apply future FASB standards (including amendments of
earlier pronouncements), or 2) continuing to follow new FASB pronouncements (unless they

conflict with GASB guidance). The District has chosen not to apply future FASB standards

for its proprietary fund.

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Effective July 1, 2002, the District adopted statement numbers 33 and 34 of the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Statement 33 is titled AccountÍng and Financíal

Reporting for Nonexchange Transuctions. Statement 34 is titled Basíc Finsncíal Statemenß -
oid Utoiogement's Discussion and Analysís - for Stste and Locøl Governmenls. The required

implementation date for GASB Statement No. 34 set forth by the GASB for phase 2

got.r.r*.rts (having revenues of $10,000,000 to $100,000,000) is for periods beginning after

June 15,2002.

The Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement

of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District. For the

most part, the effect of interfund activity has been remot'ed from these statements.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental

revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant

extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given

function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly

identifiable with a specifïc function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or

applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided

by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the

operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not

properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.

iVta¡or individual governmental funds (General Fund, Bond Redemption Debt Service Fund,

Caiitat Reserve Special Revenue Fund, Grants Special Revenue Fund and Buitding Capital
prójects Fund) and individual enterprise and fiduciary funds are reported as separate

columns in the fund financial statements.

D.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. The government-wide fïnancial statements are presented using the

-18-



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30' 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONtiNUCd)

D. Measu

economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded

when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flow's. Property taxes are

recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are

recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have

been met.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-

wide fïnancial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the District's
governmental and business-type activities. Elimination of these charges would distort the

direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources

meâsurement focus and the modifïed accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement

focus, operating statements present increases and decreases in net current assets and

unreserved fund balance as a measure of available spendable resources. This means that only

current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets.

Amounts reported as program revenues included 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services or privileges provided 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are

reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Liken'ise, general revenues

include all taxes.

All governmental fund fypes use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are

recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. "Measurable" means the

amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the

current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay liabilities of the current period. Revenues

are considered to be available if collected within 60 days after year-end.

Property taxes are reported as receivables and deferred revenue when levied and as revenues

when due for collection in the following year and determined to be available.

Grants and entitlement revenues are recognized when compliance with matching

requirements is met. A receivable is established when the related expenditures exceed revenue

receipts.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund tiability is incurred with the exception of
general obligation and capital lease debt service which is recognized when due and certain

accrued sick and personal pay which are accounted for as expenditures when expected to be

liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

-19-



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The proprietary fund types are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues

are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. The measurement
focus in these funds is on the flow of economic resources and emphasizes the determination of
net income. All assets and all liabilities associated rvith their activity are included on their
balance sheets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in
connection with a proprietary fund's ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the District's proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales and setryices. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds and internal ser"vice funds include the cost of sales and services,

administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organuations, other governments, and/or other
funds. These include Expendable Trust and Agency Funds. Expendable Trust Funds are

accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. Agency Funds are

custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of
operations.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy
to use restricted resources fïrst, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

E. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to

be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity'
revenues and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Resources are allocated to and

accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and

the means by which spending activities are controlled. The major funds presented in the

accompanying basic fÎnancial statements are as follows:

Major Governmental Funds

1. General Fund - the general operating fund of the District; used to account for all
resources that are not required legally or by sound financial management to be

accounted for in another fund.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2004

NOTE 1 OF SIGNIFI ACCO G POLICIES IContinuedl

E. Fund Accountins (Continued)

2. Bond Redemption Debt Service Fund - used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, long-term general obligation debt principal,

interest, and related costs.

3. Building (45) Capital Projects Fund - used to account for resources to be used for the

acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those fÏnanced by

proprietary funds).
4. Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue

sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

a. Capitat Reserve Fund - This fund is authorized by Colorado School Law and

is funded by allocated revenues from the General Fund. It is used to fund
ongoing capital needs such as site acquisition, building additions and

equipment purchases.
b. Governmental Designated - Purpose Grants Fund - This fund is provided to

maintain a separate accounting for federal and state grant funded programs

which normally have a different fiscal period than that of the District.

o Major Proprietary Funds - Business -Type Activities

Enterprise Funds - used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner

simitar to private business enterprises, where the intent is that the costs (including

depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be

financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Enterprise funds are considered major

funds because of community interests in the activities and sources of funding supporting these

operations.

l. Food Ser"vice Fund - this fund accounts for all financial activities associated with
the District's school breakfast and lunch programs.

F. Cash and Investments

The pooled cash concept is used whereby cash balances of each of the District's funds are

pooled and invested in certain investments. The District is allowed to invest in the following

types of investments: short-term certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements' money market

deposit accounts, mutual funds, government pools, and U.S. Treasury Obtigations. All other

securities are recorded at fair value. It is the intention of the investment pool to maximize

interest income, and securities are selected according to their risk, marketability, and

diversifïcation. Income earned or losses arising from the investment to pooled cash balances

are allocated to the various funds based on their anticipated respective average periodic equity

in pooled cash. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly

liquiO investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash

equivalents.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBBR 49
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2004

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIBS (Continued)

G. Receivables

Property taxes leviecl in 2003 but not yet available in 2004 are identified as property taxes
receivable and deferred revenues at June 30, 2004, and are presented net of an allowance for
uncollectible taxes. Program grants arc recorded as receivables and revcnues at the time
reimbursable project costs are incurred.

H. Inventories

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at cost. Inventories recorded in the Food
Services Fund consist of purchased and donated commodities. Purchased inventories are
stated at cost. Donated inventories, received at no cost under a program supported by the
Federal Government, are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of receipt.

The cost of all inventories is recorded as an asset when the individual inventory items are
purchased, and as an expenditure or expense when consumed.

I. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, vehicles and equipment, are utilized for general
District operations and are capitalized at actual or estimated cost. Donations of such assets

are recorded at estimated fair value at the time of donation. Capital assets are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements.

Maintenance, repairs, and minor renovations are recorded as expenditures when incurred.
Major additions and improvements are capitalized. When assets used in the operation of the
governmental fund types are sold, the proceeds of the sale are recorded as revenues in the
appropriate fund. The District does not capitalize interest on the construction of capital assets

in governmental funds. However, the District does capitalize interest on the construction of
capital assets in business-type activities.

The monetary threshold for capitaluation of assets is $5,000. The District's capital assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the fixed assets (5-
40 years). Depreciation of all capital assets is charged as an expense against their operations.
Depreciation is recorded in the year of acquisition and any remaining depreciation is recorded
in the year of disposition.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30' 2004

NOTE I ACCOUNTING POLICIES Contin

J. Long-Term Oblisations

In the government-n'ide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable government activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund g'pe statement
of net assets. The District records long-term debt of governmental funds at the face value.
The District's gencral obligation bonds are serviced from property taxes and other revenues of
the Debt Service Fund. Capital leases are serviced from property taxes and other revenues of
the General Fund and Capital Reserve Fund. The long-term accumulated unpaid accrued sick
leave is serviced from property taxes and other revenues by the respective fund type from
future appropriations.

K. Constitutional Amendment

In November 1992, Colorado voters approved Article X of the Colorado Constitution by
adding Section 20, commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR). TABOR
contains revenue, spending, tax and debt limitations, u,hich âpply to the State of Colorado and
local governments. [t requires, n,ith certain exceptions, advance voter approval for any new
tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that for the prior ¡'ear, extension of an expiring tax, or
tax policy change directly causing a net tax revenue gain to any entity.

On November 7r 2001 the registered voters approved a ballot resolution authorizing Falcon
School District Numbcr 49 to collect, retain and expend all revenues from any source provided
that no property tax mill levy be increased or any new tax be imposed.

Exccpt for refinancing bonded debt at a lower interest rate or adding ne*' employees to
existing pension plans, TABOR requires advance voter approval for the creation of any

multiple-fiscal year debt or other financial obligation unless adequate present cash reserves

are pledged irrevocably and held for payments in all future years. TABOR requires local
governments to establish emergency reserves to be used for declared emergencies only.
Emergencies, as defïned by TABOR, exclude economic conditions, revenue shortfalls, or
salary or fringe benefit increases. These reserves are required to be three percent or more of
fiscal year spending (excluding bonded debt service). As of June 30, 2004 the District reserved

$1,626,000 for this purpose.

Spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior fiscal year's spending

adjusted for inflation in the prior calendar year plus annual increases in funded student
enrollment. Fiscal year spending is generally defined as expenditures and reserve increases

with certain exceptions.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30' 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuedl

L. Property Taxes

Under Colorado law, all property taxes are due and payable in the year following the year
levied. The 2003 property tax calendar for El Paso County was as follows:

Levy Date
Lien Date
Tax Bills Mailed
First Installment Due
Second Installment Due
If Paid in Full, Due
Tax Sale -2002 Delinquent Property Taxes

December 22,2003
January 112004
January 112004
February 28,2004
June 15,2004
April30,2004
October 25,2003

M. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are made up of the following items and are included as lÍabilities in the
appropriate funds and account groups.

Sick Leave Pavable

Employees accrue 10-12 days of sick leave each year dependent upon their contract basis.

Sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 120 days. An employee will be

reimbursed one-half of the current substitute rate or one half of his/her base daily pay per
classification of any unused sick leave days beyond the 120 days annually.

Upon retirement (15 years or more in the Falcon School District and eligible for PERA
retirement with at least 5 years of services in the Falcon School District) an employee will be

reimbursed at the current substitute rate of pay for their classifÎcation, up to a maximum of
120 days.

The unpaid liabilify for sick leave accruals is $664'677.

Vacation Pavable

Under the District's policies certain employees earn vacation pay of 10-20 days, based on

longevity of service. All unused/accrued vacation is vested at June 30, each year. The unpaid
liability for vacation payable is 538,552.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30' 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M. Comnensated Absences lContinuerll

Personal Leave

A Teacher or an Employee who works 30 hours or morc per week may be absent for two days
per year for the purpose of personal leave. Personal days which are not used during the
school year may be added to the employee's sick leave days or be reimbursed at the current
substitute rate of pay. The unpaid liability for personal days is $68'371.

Compensated absences are reported as non-current liabilities in the government-wide
financial statements.

A summary of changes in compensated absences is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30,2004

Sick Leave
Vacation
Personal Leave

Julv -2003 Additions
48,673

2,979
51.552

Governmental Activities
Business Activities

Total

Deletions

31,136

31.136

N. Fund Equitv

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report resen,ations of fund balance for
amounts that are not availablc for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for
a specifïc purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that
are subject to change.

O. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2004

NOTE 2 RECONCTLIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation betweenfund balances - total
governmentalfunds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. Additionally, the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation between net change in
fund balances - totøl government furtds and clmnges in neÍ assets of governmental octivÍtìes as
reported in the government-wide statement of activities.

These reconciliations detail items that require adjustment to convert from the current
resources measurement and modified accrual basis for governmental fund statements to the
economic resources measurement and full accrual basis used for government-wide statements.
However, certain items having no effect on measurement and basis were eliminated from the
government fund statements during the consolidation of governmental activities.

Due FromÆo -
Governmental Funds r.02s.188

NOTE 3 BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Revenues and expenditures are controlled by budgetary accounting systems in accordance
with various legal requirements. The budgeted revenues and expenditures represent the
original adopted budget as subsequently adjusted by the Board of Education in accordance
with Colorado School Laws. Budgets are generally prepared on the same basis as that used
for accounting purposes.

The District has set procedures to be followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in
the fÏnancial statements:

1. Prior to June 1, the Business Manager submits to the Board of Education a proposed
operating budget for the fÏscal year commencing the following July l. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of fïnancing them.

2. Public notices are released to obtain taxpayer comments.
3. Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution.
4. The Business Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between categories

within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must
be approved by the Board of Education.

5. Formal budgetary integration should be employed as a management control device during
the year for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital
Projects Funds, Enterprise Funds, and Trust and Agency Funds.

6. Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects Funds, and
Enterprise Funds and Trust and Agency Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2004

NOTE 3 BUDGETARY INFORMATION (Continued)

All appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Authorization to transfer budgeted
amounts between programs and/or departments l,ithin any fund and the reallocation of
budget line items within an)' program and/or department rests with the Superintendent of
Schools and may be delegated to an appropriate level of management. Revisions and/or
supplemental appropriations that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved
by the Board of Education.

Budgetary amounts reported in the accompanying basic financial statements are as originally
adopted and amended by the Superintendent and/or the Board of Education throughout the
year.

NOTE 4 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA), requires that all units of local
government deposit cash in eligible public depositories, eligibility is determined by state
regulators. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized.
The eligible collateral is determined by the PDPA. PDPA allows the institution to create a

single collateral pool for all public funds. The pool is to be maintained by another institution
or held in trust for all the uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value of the
collateral must be at least equal to the aggregate uninsured deposits.

At June 30,2004, the District's bank balance and corresponding carrying balance were as

follorvs:

Insured (FDIC)
Uninsured, Collateralized under the

Public Deposit Protection Act
of the State of Colorado

Cash with County Treasurer
Cash on Hand

Total Cash and Derlosits

Carrying
Balance

200,079

5,092,733
270,296

550

5,496,277

5.563.658 5.686.35ó

Bank
Balance

200,079
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30' 2004

NOTE 4 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments

Colorado statutes specify investment instruments meeting defined rating and risk criteria in
which local government entities may invest:

o Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities
o Certain international agency securities
o General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
o Bankers' acceptances ofcertain banks
o Commercial paper
o Local government investment pools
¡ Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
o Certain money market funds
o Guaranteed investment contracts

The District's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed at year-end. Category I includes investments that are insured or registered or for
which the securities are held by the District or its agent in the District's name. Category 2

includes uninsured and unregistered investments for n'hich the securities are held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in the District's name. Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or
dealer, or by their agency but not in the District's name. Int'estments in money market funds
are not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book
entry form.

COLOTRUST
Governmental Money

Market Funds
Total

Category
123

Carrying
nt

7,384,088 7,384,088

4,627,088 4.627,088
12.01t.176 12.011.176

As of June 30, 2004, the District had invested $7,384,088 in the Colorado Government Liquid
Asset Trust (COLOTRUST), an investment vehicle established for local government entities in
Colorado to pool surplus funds. Due to slightly higher cash flows at certain times of the year'
the District had invested up to $7,384,088 in COLOTRUST. COLOTRUST operates similarly
to a money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1.00. Investments of
COLOTRUST consist of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips and repurchase agreements
collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping
and depository services to COLOTRUST in connection rvith the direct investment and
withdrawal functions of COLOTRUST. Substantially all securities owned by COLOTRUST
are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the custodial bank. The
custodian's internal records identify the investments owned by COLOTRUST.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30r 2004

NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows:

Governmental Activities
Balance
07-01-03 Adiustments Additions Deletions

4.464,121
65.555.957 16,219,2g¿

3,335,336

3.335.336

12,288,071
2,202.265

Non-I)epreciable Assets:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total Non-Depreciable Assets

Depreciable Assets:
Buildings &

Site Improvements
Equipment & Vehicles

Total Depreciable Assets

Less Accumulated
Depreciation for:

Building &
Site Improvernents

Equipment & Vehicles
Total Accumulated

Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation

Total

3,335,336
16,2t9.296
19.554,632

61,091,836 16,219,296

10,654,150
1,785,664

Delrceialiqn 12,439,814 2,050522 14,490,336

Total Capital Assets. Ng! 12,fl!Jl5 5.262.933 77.933.708

The adjustment column reflects reclassifications betn'een asset accounts and the elimination of
items costing $4,999 or less.

Business -Tvpe Activities

A summary of changes in Food Services Fund capital assets is as follovvs:

Balance
Julv 1.2003

Balance
Additions Deletions June 30.2004
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2004

NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Business -Tyne Activities (Continued)

Depreciation expense \ryas charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental Activities

Instruction
General Administration
Operation and Maintenance
Student Transportation
Central Support

Total Denreciation Expense -Governmental Activities

Business - Tyne Activities:

Food Services

Total Depreciation Expense - Business Type Activities

NOTE 6 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Fund Due to

318,272
8,672

L,596,249
12,778
51,843

331,527
58.125

2.050.522

56.119

56.119

Due from

706,916

6r,472
256,800

General
Bond Redemption Debt Service
Special Revenue:

Grants
Capital Reserve

Capital Projects:
Building (45)

517,970

180.274
1.025.188 1.025.188

NOTE 7 CAPITAL LEASES

The District has entered into capital lease agreements to purchase properfy, portable
buildings and equipment. The lease terms range from five to fïfteen years with annual interest
rates from 4.0"/o to 7.0o/".

Capital lease obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, are comprised of the
following:
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2004

NOTE 7 CAPITAL LEASES (Continued)

Governmental Funds
General Fund
Capital Reserve Fund

Balance
Julv 1.2003 Additions

Balance
Retirements June30.2004

Current Liability
Non Current Liability

Total

The future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal
Year
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010 and thereafter

Less Amount Representing Interest
Balance

Total
1,085,852
1,400,312
1,27rr522
1,,241,,081

1,076,069
4,391.949

10,,466,795

2,332.689
8.134.096

Certificate of Participation

In addition, the District has a lease arrangement rvith a component unit, the El Paso County
School District 49 Building Authority, a non-profit corporation, for the lease of a building.
The lease is on a year-to-year basis. Lease payments under this agreement for the year ended
June 30, 2004 were 5246,738. The lease payments are used to pay principal and interest on
Certificates of participation which were used to construct the building. Projected future
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Following is a summary:

Year Principal Interest Total

250.000200s
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2004

NOTE 8 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

2002 General Oblieation Refundine Bonds interest due semi-annually with rates ranging from
2.400/" to 4.200/", principal due annually through 2015 in payments of $10,000 to $1,795,000.
$10,460,000 of the bonds issued u,ere General Obligation Refunding Bonds, and $200,000 of
the bonds issued were General Obligation Bonds.

Additionally, the bonds bear "8" interest registered coupons yielding between 1.75o/o to
3.80% payments due annually through 2009 in amounts of S156,570 to $268,023.

2002 General Oblieation Bonds interest due semi-annually with rates ranging from 4.007o to
5.750/", principal due annually through 2021 in payments of $5,000 to $2,920,000.

Additionally, the Bonds bear "8" interest registered coupons yielding between 3.00o/o to
4.92o/o, payments due annually through 2011in amounts of $125,000 to $930,000.

1999 General Oblieation Bonds interest due semi-annually with rates ranging from 3.25o/o to
6.00/", principal due annually through 2018 in payments of $45,000 to $1,840,000.

1996 General Oblieation Bonds interest due semi-annually with rates ranging from 4,0o/" to
6,50/", principal due annuall¡' through 2015 in payments of S100,000 to $1,790,000.

1991 General Oblieation Refunding Bonds interest due semi-annually with rates ranging from
5.00% to 6.750/", principal due annually through 2004 in payments of $535,000 to $815,000.

Following is a summary of debt service requirements to maturity of all bond issues.

Year
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010-2014
2015-2019
2020-2022

Total

Principal
1,461,713
11762,245

2,,331,637

2,,6741340

3,319,459
20,794,120
22,880,000

8.315.000
63.538.514

Interest
3,161,891
3,115,863
3,,108,412
3,044,888
3,065,073

12,227,823
5,370,366

702,212

Total
4,623,604
4,878,109
5,,4401049

5,719,228
6,384,532

33,021,943
28,250,366
9,017.212

97335.04233.796.s28
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBBR 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30' 2004

NOTE t GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

Chanses in General Oblisation Bonds

Series 2002 G.O.
Refunding Bonds

Series 2002 G.O. Bonds
Series 2002 G.O. Bonds
Series 1999 G.O. Bonds
Series 1996 G.O. Bonds
Series 1991 G.O.

Refunding Bonds
Deferred Amounts:

Bond Premium
Loss on Bond

Refunding
Totals

Beginning
Balance

Julv 1.2003 Additions

11,562,803
200,000

31,190,366
16,325,000
4,590,000

875,000

2,951,070

(1.793.758)

6s.900.481

Ending
Balance

Deletions June 30.2004

156,570

123,085
385,000
110,000

(145.913)
1.268.269

11,406,233
200,000

31,,067,291
15,940,000
4,480,000

6.647,845)
64.632.212

Due
Within

One Year

152,851

203,862
530,000
130,000

(145.914)
1.525.326

430,000 -145,000 445,000

209,527 2,741,543 209,527

Advance Refunding

In prior years, the District defeased 510,460,000 of the General Obligation Bonds by placing
the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the
defeased bonds are not included in the District's financial statements. On June 30, 2004, bonds

outstanding are considered defeased.

Below is a schedule of refunded debt service requirements to maturity.

1996 G.O. Refunding Bonds
with an average interest rate of
6.5o/", original issue $ 1 0,460,000.

Fiscal
Year

2010
20tt
2012
2013
2014
201s
2016

Interest
Payable

Principal
Pavable

679,900
599,950
515,125
424,775
328,250
225,,550

116.350

2.889J00

1,230,000
1¡05,000
l¡90,000
1,485,000
1,580,000
1,680,000
1,790.000

10.460.000Totals
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Iune 30,2004

NOTE 9 PENSION PLAN

The District contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement Association of Colorado
(PERA), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefTt pension plan. PERA provides
retirement and disability benefits and surivor benefits to eligible beneficiaries annually
acljusted for cost-of-living-increases. Colorado revised Statutes (Title 24, Ãrticle 51) provides
authority for the operation of the plan. The plan is administered by a l6 member Board of
Trustees of which 14 are elected by the membership. PERA issues a publicly available
fïnancial report that includes fïnancial statements and required supplementary information
for PERA.

That reporf may be obtained by contacting PBRA, 1300 Logan Street, Denver, Colorado,
80203.

Fundine Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 8o/o of their annual covered salary and the District is
required to contribute at a stipulated rate. That rate rvas 10.I51'Â of annual covered payroll. A
portion of the District's contribution (2'/' for 2004) may be allocated for the PERA
Matchmaker plan (See note 10). An additional portion of the District's contribution (1.17o of
covered salary) is allocated for the Health Care Fund (See note 11). Requirements for
contribution percentage are established and may be changed by the PERA Board of Trustees.

The District's contributions for the latest three years were equal to the required contributions
for the periods and u'ere as follows:

Year Ended June 30
2004
2003
2002

$ 3,280,653
s 2,442,083
s 1,907,205

NOTE 10 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

In January 2001, the District began participating in an employer match plan instituted by the

Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) of Colorado. The program is called PERA
MatchMaker. It was made possible by Senate Bitl 99-90 and the fully funded status of the

PERA defïned benefit plan (described above). In this defÏned contribution plan, the employer

matches dollar-for-dollar voluntary contributions made by employees to deferred

compensation vehicles (IRS section 401 (k), 457 or 403 (b) plans administered by PERA and

other plan providers) up to a maximum of 2"/o in 2004 of the employee's PERA includable
salary. The matching funds paid by the District are a direct reduction of the amount that
woukl be submitted to PERA for the District's required contribution to the PERA defÏned

benef,rt plan. If employees choose to make no voluntary deferred compensation contribution'
the District makes the full employer contribution amount required by the defined benefit plan

and 100u1, is submitted to PERA.
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June 30,2004

NOTE 10 ON PENSION PLAN Continued

The District made matching contributions to eligible deferred compensation plans as follows:

Year Amount
2004
2003

$350,948
510,305

NOTE 11 POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH-CARE BENEFITS

The District contributes to the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer post-employment HealthCare plan administered by PERA. The HCTF provides a
HealthCare premium subsidy to PERA participating benefits recipients and their eligible
beneficiaries. Title 24, Article 51, Part 12 ol the CRS, as amended, assigns the authority to
establish the HCTF benefit provisions to the State Legislature. PERA issues a publicly
available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the HCTF. That report may be obtained by contacting PERA,
1300 Logan Street, Denver, Colorado 80203.

Fundine Policv

The Falcon School District is required to contribute at a rate of l.l0oÂ of covered salary for all
PERA members as set by statute. No member contributions are required. The contribution
requirements for the Falcon School District are established under Title 24, Article Sl,Part 4 of
the CRS, as amended. The apportionment of the contribution to the HCTF is established
under Title 24, Article 51, Section 208 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, as amended. The
Falcon School District's contributions to HCTF for the years ending June 30, 2004,2003, and
2002 rvere $355,829, 54101270 and $347,111, respectively, equal to their required contributions
for each year.

NOTE 12 RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees, or acts of God.

The District maintains commercial insurance for all risks of loss. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fÏscal years.

NOTE 13 LITIGATION

None.

-35-



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
NorES ro BASTCuFTNA)îä1" srArEMBNrs

NOTE 14 URE F S AND

Claims and Judgments - The District participates in a number of federal, state and county
programs that are fully or partially funded by grants received from other governmental units.
Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit the appropriate grantor government. If
expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the
District may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2004,
signifìcant amounts of grant expenditures have not been audited by the grantor but the
District believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on subsequent audits will not have
a material effect on any of the individual government funds or the overall financial position of
the District.

NOTE 15 JOINT VENTURES

Pikes Peak Board of Coon Educational Services

Not reflected in the accompanying fTnancial statements in the District's participation in the
Pikes Peak Board of Cooperative Educational Services (BOCES). The BOCES is an
organization that provides member districts educational services at a shared lower cost per
District.

The District has one member on the Board. The Board has fTnal authorify for all budgeting
and financing of the joint t'enture. The District's share of the joint venture is not determinable
at June 30r2004. The joint venture summary audited financial information as of June 30, 2003
is as follows:

Total Assets
Current Liabilities
Fund Equity

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

Total Revenues (GAAP Basis)
Total Expenditures (GAAP Basis)
Excess (Deficiency)

5.t4s.t29
2,699,935

194

5.145.129

11,878,487
11,772,560

1 927

The B.O.C.E.S. has no long term debt.

The equity interest of each member District is not known, nor is the change in such interest.
The equity interest rvill be determined only at the disbanding of the B.o.c.E.S..

The BOCES is not included as a component unit of the District as the financial responsibilify is
minimal, there is no financial interdependency, the District does not have the ability to
signifïcantly influence the operations of the BOCES and the District is not accountable for
fïscal matters of the BOCES.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2004

NOTE 16 COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS

The following funds of the District exceeded expenditure budgets as of June 30r2004, and this
may be a violation of Colorado Budget Law:

Expenditures in
Excess of Budeet

Building - Capital Projects Fund

NOTE 17 FOR\ryARD AND DELIVERY INVESTMENT AGREEMENT

97

In December 2002, the District's General Fund received payment of $1,240,000 pursuant to a
forward delivery agreement. In exchange for this amount, the District agreed to make
payments into a bank trust account (Bank One Trust Company) from its Debt Service X'und

revenue for subsequent purchases of investment securities from a third party (JP Morgan
Chase Bank). The securities mature at such times as are required for meeting the District's
debt service payment obligations over the fourteen-year contract period. Should the District
terminate the agreement, it would be obligated to repay a portion of the $1,240,000 received to
compensate for loss of economic benefits based on market conditions existent at the time the
agreement is dissolved.

The amount received under this agreement is being amortized over the term of the agreement
for GAAP purposes, rather than in full in the year ended June 30, 2003 with the unamortued
balance reflected as deferred revenue. The following GAAP-basis schedule shows the amounts
of revenue recognized and the remaining balances treated as deferred revenue as of and for the
year ended June 30,20042

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

NOTE 18 DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The fund balance of the following fund was in deficit as of June 30,20042

Fund Amount

Capital Reserve Special Revenue Fund 261.850

Balance
(Deferred
Revenue)

s 1,062,858

-3 t-



REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISONS



MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund

The General Fund accounts for all transactions of the District not accounted for in other funds. This fund
represents an accounting for the District's ordinary operations fÏnanced from properfy taxes and other
general revenues. It is the most significant fund in relation to the District's overall operations.

Capital Proiects Fund

Building Fund (45) - This fund account for specifïc construction projects funded by the sale of general
obligation bonds. Separate funds are utilized to account for specifTc bond authorizations.

Snecial Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specifïc revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Reserve Fund - This fund is authorized by Colorado School Law and is funded by allocated
revenues from the General Fund. It is used to fund ongoing capital needs such as site acquisition, building
additions and equipment purchases.

Grants Fund - This fund is provided to maintain a separate accounting for federal and state grant funded
programs which normally have a different fiscal period than that of the District.



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BTIDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 3012004

REVENUES
Local Sources

Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Earnings on Investments
Delinquent Taxes & Interest
Tuition
Other

Countv Sources
Fees

State Sources
Equalization
Transportation
Vocational Education
Special Education
ELPA
Gifted and Talented

Federal Sources
Impact Aid
Medicaid
ROTC

Allocation to Capital Reserve/
Insurance Reserve Funds

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Supporting Services:

Students
Instructional Staff
General Administration
School Administration
Business Services
Operations and Maintenance
Student Transportation
Central Support
Other Support
Facilities Acquisition/Construction
Debt Service

Total Supnorting Services
Anpropriated Reserves

(2.151,544) (2.151.544)

46,264,293 46,697,149

Budseted Amounts
Orieinal Final
8,017,,799 8,ol7,7gg
1,625,869 1,625,869

75,000 75,000

425,$00 425,000

37,006,169 37,429,024
433,000 433,000
116,000 116,000
533,000 533,000

44,000 44,000

9,434 9,434

Variance with
Final Budget-

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

1,163,614
335,112

71,729
19,259

47g,g2g
(152,09s)

(945,035)
103,423

9,365
68,930
4,916

ll,37l

98,859
1,983

18,106

(942.2561

355.541

115,000
25,000

115,000
25,000

Actual
9,181,413
1,960,981

146,729
lg,25g

478,828
272,905

36,483,989
536,423
125,365
601,930

4,916
55,371

213,858
26,983
18,106

(3.093.800)

47,042,689

27,632,631 27,826,209 27,776,862 49,346

10,965
18.589,477 19.179.739

1,481,020 1,481,020
Total Expenditures 47.610,918 47,896.705 46.955.600

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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3,338,133
1,940,444

446,969
21987,,663

662,102
5,059,792
1,888,990
2,167,175

5,000
1,000

18,497.267

3,338,133
1,940,444

446,968
3,079,973

662,102
5,0591792
1,888,990
2,167,175

5,000
1,000

3,504,936
2,018,990

927,434
2,919,711

552,251
4,939,936
2,324,726
1,938,714

42,075

(166,803)
(78,546)

(480,466)
160,162
109,851
120,856

(435,736)
228,461
(37,075)

1,000
(10.965)

(589.261)

1.481.020
941.105



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FTJND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For the Ended June 30,2004

Budgeted Amounts
Orieinal Final

(40.7531
(40.7s3)

Variance with
Final Budget-

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

177,821
177.821

Actual

REVENUES OVER (UNpER) EXPENpITURES &3!5,62s) (1¿02éÐ 87.089

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out
Total Other Financins Source (Uses)

$77,8211
$77,821)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (1,387,378) (1,387,378) 87,089

Non-An Reser.ves (3,318,618) (3,318,618)

FUND BALANCE. Julv I 4,705,996 4,705,996 4,464,089

FUND CE^.Iune 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-39-
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FT]ND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
BUILDING (45) - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended June 2004

Budset Amounts
Orieinal Final Actual

20,000
20,000

245.000
245.000

Variance with
Final Budget-

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Sales Tax Refunds
Interest Earnings

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:

Building
Equipment

Total Expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE. Julv I

FUND BALANCE. June 30

3,833,719

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES _ BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL RESERVE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30,2004

Budeet Amounts
Orieinal Final Actual

3,100,000
39,000

1.721,544
4.860.544

3,100,000
39,000

1,721.544
4.860.544

Variance with
Final Budget-

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

11332,327
(108,173)
(813,537)

000@)
t700.000)

REVENUES:
Local Grant - Development Agreement
Interest Earnings
Other
Allocated Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:

Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

Debt Service:
Principal Retirements
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Appropriated Reserves

Total Expenditures

Total Other Sources fUses)

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES
Non Appropriated Reserves

4'404'000-- 4'404'000 

_ ''Tí:,ii;

5,320,429

REVENUE OVER ruNpER) EXPENpTTURES $952M) $952,027) (263.4s0)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCBS ruSBS)
Lease Purchase Proceeds 700.000

700.000
700.000
700.000

839,711
487,335

(352,027)
(20,787)

(352,027) (263,450)
(20,787)

1261.850)

FUND BALANCE. Julv I 372,814 372,914 1.600

FUND BALANCE. June 30 (Deficit)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES _ BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GRANTS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended June 2004

Budset Amounts
Orieinal Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Instruction
Student Support
Instructional Staff
Central Support

Total Expenditures

2,063,021

134,892

2.197,913

REVENUES OVER ruNDER) EXPENDITURES rc60.2921 (660,2921

FUND BALAI{CE. Julv I 660.292 660,292

FUND BALANCE. June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDTIAI, F'IINT) ATEMENTS AND OTHER SCHEDULES



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND OTHER SCHEDULES

Proprietarry Fund - Business - Type Activities

Enterprise Funds - used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent is that the costs (including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. Enterprise funds are considered major funds because of community interests in the activities and
sources of funding supporting these operations.

Food Service Fund - This fund accounts for all financial activities associated with the District's school
breakfast and lunch programs.

Bond Redemption Debt Service Fund

Bond Redemption Debt Service Fund - used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, long-term general obligation debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds account for revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for specifîed
purposes.

Insurance Reserve Fund - This fund is authorized by Colorado School Law for the purpose of providing
the District with a means to self-insure a portion of its insurance needs. Funding is provided by General
Fund allocated revenues.

Capital Proiects Fund

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources created by the issuance of bonded indebtedness to be

used for major Capital Projects.

Building Fund (44) - This funcl accounts for expenditures from bond proceeds for major capital projects
The revenues and expenditures of this fund are controlled by state statute and the bond ordinance.

Capital Reserve Fund - This fund is to account for City and County impact fees in lieu of land dedication.
The resources are to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Fiduciarv Funds

Schedule of changes in assets and liabilities.

Schedule of Changes in Receipts and Disbursements - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Agency Funds

Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Private Purpose Trust
Scholarship Fund



FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOOD SERVICES - PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

OPERATING REVENUES
Student and Adult Meals
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Seruices
Supplies-Food
Depreciation
Supplies-Other
Indirect Cost
Appropriated Reserves

Total Expenses

INCOME ÉOS$ FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal Aid:

National School Lunch/Breakfast Program
USDA Commodity Food Service Program

State Aid:
Meals

Total Non-Operating Revenues

(717,482) (450.283)

532,500
125,000
73,200

755,000
40,000

141,800
25,000

312.482
2,004,982

Actual

647,309
128,434
82,635

878,532
56,119
87,769
25,000

1.905.798

395,856
59,731

20.036
475,623

(114,809)
(3,434)
(9,43s)

(123,532)
(16,119)
54,031

312.482
99.184

100,856
(10,269)

20.036
110.623

295,000
70,000

365.000

Q52,482\ 25'340

Q52,482) 25,340

352.482 953.700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES _ BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
BOND REDEMPTION DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended June 2004

Budset morrnts
Orieinal Final Actual

4.560.000
4.560.000

t3.302)

4.560.000
4.s60.000

4,901,206
4.901,206

Variance with
Final Budget-

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

341,206
341.206

REVENUES
Property Taxes

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Appropriated Reserves

Total Exnenditures

REVENUES OVER ruNDER) EXPENDITURES

NON APPROPRIATED RESERVE

1,204,655
3,201,691

4.406,346

4.804.800

1n2ì 494,860

(1,750,488) (1,750,488)

FUND BALANCES. July I 1,753.790 1.753.790 4.309.940

FUND BALANCES. June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-44-





Capital Proiects Fund
Capital
Reserue

1,000

1.000

1.000
1.000

3,439

3.439

1.000 3.439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these firrancial statements.
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Capital Proiects Fund
Capital

86,025

86.025

86.025
86.025

1.000

1.000

Total
Non-Major

Governmental
Funds

1,342

2,097

3.439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES _ BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
INSURANCE RESERVE _ SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30,2004

REVENUES
Other
Allocated Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Central Support:

Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Appropriated Reserves

Total Expenditures

REVENUES OVER ruNDER) EXPENDITURES

NON-APPROPRIATED RE SERVBS

FUND BALANCE. Julv 1

Actual

441,217
11,984

(16s1360)
15.000

11503601

453,201

(2,700) 1,439

(1,,271)

3,971 1.000

2.439FUND BALANCE. June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL RESERVE - CAPITAL PROJECTS _ CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended June 3012004

REVENUES
Other Income

EXPENDITUR"ES:
Buildings
Appropriated Reserve

Total Expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

NON - APPROPRIATED RESERVES

FUND BALANCE. Julv I

FUND BALANCE. June 30

150.000 86.025 (é3Æ)

86,025
180.500
180.500 86.025

(30,500)

(195,235)

225.735 1..000

1.000

Budeet
Final Actual

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30,2004

Original and Final
Budset

1.655.000

1.655.000

Variance with
Final Budget-

Favorable
(Unfavorable)Actual

ADDITIONS
Local Receipts

DEDUCTIONS
Disbursements

t-537 -957 û 17.043)

1.s06.230 148.770

31,727

412,022

443.749

CHANGES IN DUE TO STUDENT GROUPS

DUE TO STUDENT GROUPS, Beeinnine

DUE TO STUDENT GROUPS, Endine

447.002

447.002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FALCON SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 49

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 3012004

Private Purpose Scholarshin Fund

Original and Final
Budset

ADDITIONS
Local Receipts

DEDUCTIONS
Disbursements - Scholarships

CHANGES IN DUE TO STUDENT GROUPS

DUE TO STUDENT GROUPS. Beeinnine 1.303

DIIF], TO GROTIPS. End tng 1.303

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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5431.200

1.200

Variance with
Final Budget-

Favorable
Actual nfavorable

t657)

1.200

1.005

s43

462


